
MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

March 5, 2025 
2:00 p.m. 

Hospital Classrooms 1, 2 & 3 

 
    

AGENDA 
 

 

 

Mission: Compassionate Care For Every Life We Touch 

Vision: To be our community’s trusted healthcare leader. 

I. Call to Order  Barbara Sowada 

 A.  Roll Call  

B. Pledge of Allegiance   

C. Mission and Vision Marty Kelsey 

D. Mission Moment Irene Richardson, Chief Executive Officer 

II. Approval of Agenda (For Action)  Barbara Sowada 

A. Requests for Consent Agenda items to be removed to New Business 

(If not removed, no questions/discussion) 

B. Requests for Senior Leader or Board Committee Reports to be removed to New Business 

(if not removed, no questions/discussion) 

III. Minutes (For Action) Barbara Sowada 

A. February 5, 2025 Regular Meeting 

IV. Community Communication  Barbara Sowada 

V. Old Business Barbara Sowada 

A. Quarterly Progress Report on Strategic Plans and Goals 

B. Other 

1. Employee Health Plan (Still in progress)            Ann Marie Clevenger, Chief Nursing Officer 

VI. Consent Agenda (For Action) Barbara Sowada 

A. Approval of Capital Expenditure Requests 

B. Approval of Bad Debts 

C. Approval of Policies on Final Reading 

1. Employee Policies 

a. Access to Personnel File 

b. Dress Code  

D. Other Requiring Board Action 

1. Revised Meeting Agenda Template for Regular Meetings of the Board of Trustees 

2. Professional Practice Review Plan  

VII. New Business (Review and Questions/Comments) Barbara Sowada 

A. Significant Emerging Issues 

B. Other 

1. Quality Committee Charter Update (For Review) Stephanie Mlinar, Director of Quality 

2. Capital Budget Amendment (For Action) Tami Love, Chief Financial Officer 

3. Request for County Capital Funds (For Action) Tami Love 
  

1/136



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

March 5, 2025 
2:00 p.m. 

Hospital Classrooms 1, 2 & 3 

 
    

AGENDA 
 

 

 

Mission: Compassionate Care For Every Life We Touch 

Vision: To be our community’s trusted healthcare leader. 

VIII. Reports 

A. Chief Executive Officer and Guests Verbal Reports 

1. Chief Executive Officer Report  Irene Richardson 

2. Medical Staff Services Chief of Staff Report  Dr. Alicia Gray 

3. County Commissioner Liaison Report  Taylor Jones 

 

B. Senior Leader and Board Committee Reports 

1. Senior Leader Written Reports 

a. Chief Clinical Officer Kari Quickenden 

b. Chief Experience Officer Cindy Nelson 

c. Chief Financial Officer Tami Love 

d. Chief Nursing Officer Ann Marie Clevenger 

2. Board Committee Written or Verbal Reports 

a. Executive Oversight and Compensation Committee Barbara Sowada 

b. Joint Conference Committee Barbara Sowada 

c. Building and Grounds Committee Craig Rood 

d. Compliance Committee Kandi Pendleton 

e. Governance Committee Marty Kelsey 

f. Quality Committee Barbara Sowada 

g. Human Resources Committee Kandi Pendleton 

h. Finance and Audit Committee Marty Kelsey 

1) Information Services Report 

2) Committee Meeting Information 

i. Foundation Board Report Craig Rood 

XI.  Contracts Irene Richardson 

A. Consent Agenda (For Information, No Action Needed) 

1. Coffey Site Assist Training and Technical Support 

2. Coffey Site Assist Website Redesign and Development 

3. Crisis Prevention Institute Training Agreement 

4. QLER Telepsych Amendment 

X. Good of the Order            Barbara Sowada 

XI. Executive Session (W.S. §16-4-405(a)(ix))       Barbara Sowada 

XII. Action Following Executive Session Barbara Sowada 

XIII. Adjourn Barbara Sowada 

2/136



OUR MISSION 

Compassionate care for every life we touch. 

 

 OUR VISION 

To be our community’s trusted healthcare leader. 

 

  OUR VALUES 

   Be Kind 

    Be Respectful 

     Be Accountable 

      Work Collaboratively 

       Embrace Excellence 

 

   OUR STRATEGIES 

    Patient Experience 

     Quality & Safety 

      Community, Services & Growth 

       Employee Experience 

        Financial Stewardship 

3/136



 

MINUTES FROM THE REGULAR MEETING 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 

February 5, 2025 

The Board of Trustees of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County met in regular session on February 

5, 2025, at 2:00 p.m. with Dr. Barbara Sowada, President, presiding. 

CALL TO ORDER 

Dr. Sowada welcomed everyone and called the meeting to order.  

Dr. Sowada requested a roll call and announced there was a quorum. The following Trustees were 

present: Judge Nena James, Mr. Marty Kelsey, Ms. Kandi Pendleton, Mr. Craig Rood, and Dr. Barbara 

Sowada.  

Officially present during the meeting: Ms. Irene Richardson, Chief Executive Officer; Dr. Alicia Gray,  

Chief of Medical Staff; Mr. Geoff Phillips, Legal Counsel; and Mr. Taylor Jones, Sweetwater Board of 

County Commissioners. 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Dr. Sowada led the attendees in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

Mission and Vision 

Dr. Sowada read aloud the mission and vision statements. 

Mission Moment 

Ms. Richardson said she has the opportunity to meet with all new physicians, medical and nursing 

students, locums, nurse practitioners, etc., and continually hears that people never had the opportunity 

to meet the CEO and other leaders to learn about the culture and expectations when they visit and work 

at other locations. They express gratitutde for the opportunity we provide. Ms. Richardson gave kudos 

to Ms. Kerry Downs, Medical Staff Services Director, and her staff for the great orientation they develop 

for everyone joining us.  

AGENDA 

The motion to approve the agenda as presented was made by Judge James; second by Ms. Pendleton.  

Motion carried.  

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

The motion to approve the minutes of the January 8, 2025, regular meeting as presented was made by 

Judge James; second by Mr. Rood. Motion carried. The motion to approve the minutes of the January 8, 

2025, special meeting as presented was made by Ms. Pendleton; second by Judge James. Mr. Kelsey 

abstained and the motion carried. The motion to approve the minutes of the January 28, 2025, special 

meeting as presented was made by Ms. Pendleton; second by Judge James. Motion carried.  

COMMUNITY COMMUNICATION 

 

There were no comments.   

4/136



 

 

Minutes of the February 5, 2025, Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 2 of 5 

 

 

OLD BUSINESS 

Employee Health Plan 

Dr. Ann Marie Clevenger, Chief Nursing Officer, said the Plan is still under review and will be brought 

back when ready for consideration. 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

 

Employee Policies 

 

Access to Personnel File: Mr. Kelsey asked about adding information regarding other access related to 

legal requests. 

 

Dress Code: There were no concerns shared. Both policies will be brought back next month. Dr. Sowada 

asked if there are any questions to contact Ms. Amber Fisk, Human Resources Director.  

 

Critical Access Hospital Policies Consent Agenda 

 

The motion to approve the Parenteral Nutrition and Pharmacy Controlled Drugs: Abuses and Losses 

policies as presented in the consent agenda was made by Mr. Kelsey; second by Judge James. Motion 

carried.  

 

SENIOR LEADER REPORTS 

 

Dr. Sowada thanked the leaders for the reports. Ms. Pendleton asked about medical oncology referrals 

almost doubling. Dr. Kari Quickenden, Chief Clinical Officer, said we are receiving more referrals from 

providers including from the Huntsman Cancer Institute. Ms. Pendleton asked about cash collections of 

110%. Ms. Tami Love, Chief Financial Officer, said with critical access and issues with Medicare and 

estimates of what collections could have been, we estimated 110% if we had not been waiting on 

payments.  

 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER REPORT 

 

Ms. Richardson welcomed Dr. Alicia Gray, Chief of Medical Staff, and introduced Ms. Karali Plonsky, 

Patient Experience Director. She said both have hit the ground running and have great ideas and are 

making good things happen. Ms. Richardson reported we continue working on the strategic plan 

initiatives. In Community and Growth, OB Leadership will present at the Rock Springs Chamber 

Luncheon in February. Dr. Kyle Hoffman, General Surgery, will present to the Rock Springs High 

School Health Academy. Ms. Richardson will present to the Green River Chamber of Commerce at their 

monthly luncheon. She said we are working to get our messages out to the community. We are scheduled 

to have an onsite visit from a Urologist in March. Dr. Ken Holt and Dr. Javier Hernandez, OB/GYN, 

will join us in March, as will Ms. Mariah Pacheco, Pediatric Nurse Practitioner. Ms. Richardson said the 

Finance and Audit Committee approved a new nuclear medicine camera so we will get some redundancy 

with CT. We are working with Senior Leaders to develop a flash report for key metrics from various 

departments. Rock Springs Mayor Max Mickelson invited Ms. Richardson to join him for two 

community town hall meetings in February. The purpose is to discuss the impact from proposed property 

tax relief bills. Ms. Richardson said, if passed, it will have a huge impact on us and our community. Ms. 

5/136



 

 

Minutes of the February 5, 2025, Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 3 of 5 

 

Richardson gave a brief update on other bills moving through the state legislature. She said we are 

watching federal legislation activities. We are watching tariff activities and eyeing the projected impacts 

on prices and shortages. Ms. Richardson thanked Ms. Lena Warren, Community Outreach Director, and 

Ms. Cindy Nelson, Chief Experience Officer, for presenting to the Rock Springs Chamber Boost 

Leadership Academy when they visited onsite at the end of January. Ms. Richardson thanked Ms. 

Nelson, Ms. Plonsky, and Mr. Josh Wilson, Patient Relations Specialist, for presenting to the Rock 

Springs Young at Heart Senior Center at the end of January. Following the Master Plan presentation 

January 28, Senior Leaders will prioritize and include information in the upcoming budget process plans. 

Ms. Richardson reported we are still waiting for Noridian to provide a rate to start billing under our new 

number. The Foundation Red Tie Gala was a huge success. Ms. Richardson thanked Ms. Kayla 

Mannikko, Foundation Executive Director, the Foundation Board, and everyone who volunteered to help 

make the event a success. She thanked Unidine for the delicious food. Ms. Richardson said we are 

thankful for the support of our community. She said the American Hospital Association Rural Health 

Conference will be held in San Antonio at the end of February. She said we are as busy as can be with 

staff working on all cylinders. Ms. Richardson thanked the Board for their support.  

 

CHIEF OF THE MEDICAL STAFF REPORT 

 

Dr. Gray said she is happy to serve and reported many medical staff committees have started convening 

for 2025. Physicians have been appointed to various committees. She said we are excited for the 

opportunities to serve and be involved.  

 

COMMITTEE REPORTS 

 

Joint Conference Committee 

 

Dr. Sowada said the Committee did not meet. 

 

Buildings & Ground Committee 

 

Mr. Rood said the information is in the meeting packet.  

 

Compliance Committee 

Ms. Pendleton said she did not have anything additional to report. 

Governance Committee 

Mr. Kelsey said the Committee is working through policies with the Board Attorney. 

 

Quality Committee 

 

Dr. Sowada said the information is in the meeting packet.  

 

Finance & Audit Committee 

 

Capital Expenditures: 

Mr. Kelsey said the Committee approved three capital expenditure requests to move forward for Board 

approval. The motion to approve FY25-29 for $442,349.89 for network infrastructure as presented was 

6/136



 

 

Minutes of the February 5, 2025, Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 4 of 5 

 

made by Mr. Kelsey; second by Mr. Rood. Motion carried. The motion to approve FY25-32 for $52,992 

for website redesign as presented was made by Mr. Kelsey; second by Ms. Pendleton. Motion carried. 

The motion to approve FY25-35 for Siemens Symbia Lease for $880,000 as presented was made by Mr. 

Kelsey; second by Mr. Rood. Motion carried.  

Bad Debt: The motion to approve the net bad debt and recoveries as presented of $1,900,904.86 was 

made by Mr. Kelsey, second by Ms. Pendleton. Motion carried. 

 

Foundation Board 

 

Mr. Rood said the Red Tie Gala had a great turnout and it was a great event. He shared preliminary 

numbers and said we will see a final report coming out in the near future. 

 

Ratify Foundation Board of Directors Member: The motion to ratify Mr. Jim Jessen as a Foundation 

Board of Directors member as presented was made by Mr. Rood; second by Ms. Pendleton. Motion 

carried.   

 

Executive Oversight and Compensation 

 

Dr. Sowada said there would be discussion in the executive session. 

 

CONTRACTS 

 

Consent Agenda 

 

There were no questions or comments. 

 

GOOD OF ORDER 

 

Dr. Sowada encouraged Board members to consider adding community members to be on Board 

Committees. She said it would be nice to build our own pipeline. She invited Trustees to let her or Ms. 

Richardson know if they had suggestions for community members to invite. 

 

Ms. Downs said the Board recently reviewed the Medical Staff Peer Review Plan. She said there was a 

section referencing the Chief Medical Officer. We will need to update since we do not have that position 

any longer. Dr. Sowada asked Ms. Downs to bring the Plan back to the Board with updates. Dr. Sowada 

said she hopes to have a Joint Conference Committee meeting in March.  

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

The motion to go into executive session at 2:41 p.m. to discuss legal, personnel, and items considered 

confidential by law was made by Ms. Pendleton; second by Judge James. Motion carried.  

 

RECONVENE INTO REGULAR SESSION 

 

The motion to leave the executive session and return to the regular session at 4:55 p.m. was made by 

Judge James; second by Ms. Pendleton. Motion carried.  

 

  

7/136



 

 

Minutes of the February 5, 2025, Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 5 of 5 

 

ACTION FOLLOWING EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

Pursuant to the notice provided in the agenda, the Board of Trustees held discussions and action was 

taken.  

 

The motion to grant clinical privileges and appointments to the medical staff as discussed in executive 

session was made by Judge James; second by Ms. Pendleton. Motion carried. 

 

Credentials Committee Recommendations to the Board of Trustees for Granting Clinical Privileges 

and Granting Appointment to the Medical Staff from January 20, 2025 

 

1. Initial Appointment to Associate Staff (1 year) 

 Dr. Gregory Hammond, Sleep Medicine 

 Dr. Alexandru David, Infectious Disease 

 Dr. Ghazi Ghanem, Infectious Disease 

 Dr. Mark Dowell, Infectious Disease 

 Dr. Charles Mateskon, Radiation Oncology 

 Dr. Ram Baboo, Neurology 

 Dr. Cesar Javier Hernandez, OB/GYN 

2. Initial Appointment to Active Staff (2 year) 

 Dr. Rami Ibrahim, Radiology 

3. Initial Appointment to Consulting Staff (1 year) 

 Dr. Michael Caruso, Tele-Radiology (VRC) 

4. Reappointment to Active Staff (2 year) 

 Dr. Steven Croft, Anesthesia 

 Dr. Michael Bowers, Family Medicine 

 Dr. Peter Jensen, Ophthalmology 

5. Reappointment to Consulting Staff (2 year) 

 Dr. Gregg Sydow, Tele-Radiology (VRC) 

6. Reappointment to Non-Physician Provider Staff (2 year) 

 Emily James, FNP-C Family Nurse Practitioner 

 

The motion to approve a Memorandum of Understanding and authorize the CEO to sign as discussed 

in executive session was made by Judge James; second by Mr. Rood. Motion carried. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

There being no further business to discuss, the meeting was adjourned at 4:56 p.m.  

 

 

  

  __________________________________ 

  Dr. Barbara Sowada, President 

Attest: 

 

_________________________________ 

Judge Nena James, Secretary 

8/136



9/136



10/136



11/136



12/136



13/136



14/136



15/136



16/136



17/136



18/136



19/136



20/136



21/136



22/136



23/136



24/136



 
 

                     ORIENTATION MEMO 
 

 
 

Board Meeting Date:3/5/2025  
 
Topic for Old & New Business Items: 
Employee Policies – Access to Personnel File – For action.  
 
Policy or Other Document: 

 ☒ Revision 

 ☐ New 
 
Brief Senior Leadership Comments: 
Presented for first read/review at 02/05/2025 Board Meeting. Recommend do 
pass. Updated as recommended by Geoff Phillips 02-06-2025. 

 

 Board Committee Action: 

Click or tap here to enter text. 
 
Policy or Other Document: 

     ☐ For Review Only 

 ☒ For Board Action 
 
Legal Counsel Review: 

 ☒ In House Comments:. 

 ☒ Board  Comments:. 
 
Senior Leadership Recommendation: 
Do pass 

25/136



DRAFT

Status Draft PolicyStat ID 17347387 

Approved N/A 

Review Due N/A 

Document 
Area 

Employee 
Policies 

EMPLOYEE POLICIES - ACCESS TO PERSONNEL FILE 

Purpose 
MHSC maintains personnel records for each employee and access to these personnel records is 
restricted to the employee to whom the files apply and those who are in the direct line of supervision of 
the employee. 

EMPLOYEE POLICIES - ACCESS TO PERSONNEL FILE 

Purpose 

MHSC is committed to maintaining personnel records in a manner that meets all federal and state laws 
and regulations. To that end, all personnel files will be maintained in the HR Department in either paper 
or electronic format. 

Access to personnel files is restricted to the employee to whom the files pertain and those with a 
legitimate business or operational need in accordance with their supervisory or administrative 
responsibilities. The Director of Human Resources is responsible for maintaining the confidentiality and 
security of personnel records. 

Policy 
I. Access to Personnel Files 

A. Employee files are maintained by the Human Resources (HR) department and are 
considered confidential. 

B. Directors and supervisors may only have access to personnel file information on a 
need-to-know basis. 

C. Personnel file access by current employees and former employees will generally be 
permitted within 10 days of a written request unless otherwise required under state 
law. Personnel files are to be reviewed in the Human Resources department. 

D. Employee files may not be taken outside the HR department. 

EMPLOYEE POLICIES - ACCESS TO PERSONNEL FILE. Retrieved 03/2025. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/17347387/. Copyright © 2025 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 1 of 2

26/136



DRAFT
Approval Signatures 

Step Description Approver Date 

E. Representatives of government or law enforcement agencies, in the course of their 
duties, may be allowed access to file information. 

Reviewed and Approved: 

HR Committee 

MHSC Board of Trustees 

Policy 

I. Access to Personnel Files 

A. Employee files are maintained by the Human Resources (HR) department and are considered 
confidential. 

B. Directors and supervisors may only have access to personnel file information on a need-to-
know basis. 

C. Employee medical and/or workers compensation information will be maintained in a separate, 
secure file. 

D. Personnel file access by current employees and former employees will generally be permitted 
within 10 days of a written request unless otherwise required under state law. Personnel files 
are to be reviewed in the Human Resources department. 

E. Employee files may not be taken outside the HR department. 

F. Personnel records may be disclosed in compliance with a lawfully issued subpoena or court 
order. If such a request is received, MHSC will notify the employee unless prohibited by law or 
a court directive. 

II. Relation to the MHSC Public Records Release Policy 

Personnel records maintained by MHSC are confidential and not considered public records under the 
Wyoming Public Records Act (W.S. 16-4-203(d)(iii)). As a result, personnel files are not subject to public 
disclosure except as required by law. 

Requests for personnel records will be handled in accordance with MHSC's internal policies and 
applicable federal and state laws. Employment contracts and agreements that set forth terms and 
conditions of employment may be available for public inspection, but all other personnel-related records 
remain confidential. 

EMPLOYEE POLICIES - ACCESS TO PERSONNEL FILE. Retrieved 03/2025. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/17347387/. Copyright © 2025 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 2 of 2

27/136



 
 

                     ORIENTATION MEMO 
 

 
 

Board Meeting Date:3/5/2025  
 
Topic for Old & New Business Items: 
Employee Policies – Dress Code Policy – For action 
 
Policy or Other Document: 

 ☒ Revision 

 ☐ New 
 
Brief Senior Leadership Comments: 
Presented for first read/review at 02/05/2025 Board Meeting.   

 

 Board Committee Action: 

Recommended do pass. 
 
Policy or Other Document: 

     ☐ For Review Only 

 ☒ For Board Action 
 
Legal Counsel Review: 

 ☒ In House Comments:. 

 ☐ Board  Comments:. 
 
Senior Leadership Recommendation: 
Do pass 

28/136



29/136



30/136



31/136



32/136



33/136



34/136



 
 

                     ORIENTATION MEMO 
 

 
 

Board Meeting Date:3/5/2025  
 
Topic for Old & New Business Items: 
 
Revised Agenda Format for the Board of Trustees Regular Meetings – For action 
 
Policy or Other Document: 

 ☐ Revision 

 ☒ New 
 
Brief Senior Leadership Comments: 
. 

 

 Board Committee Action: 

Approved by the Governance Committee at their February meeting. Presented at 
the March Board of Trustees meeting for approval via the consent agenda. 
 
Policy or Other Document: 

     ☐ For Review Only 

 ☒ For Board Action 
 
Legal Counsel Review: 

 ☐ In House Comments:. 

 ☐ Board  Comments:. 
 
Senior Leadership Recommendation: 
. 

35/136



AGENDA 
 
 
I Call to Order 
  Roll Call 
  Pledge of Allegiance 
  Mission and Vision 
  Mission Moment 
II Approval of Agenda (For Action) 
  Requests for Consent Agenda items to be removed to New Business? 
  (If not removed, no questions/discussion) 

Requests for Senior Leader or Board Committee Reports to be removed to New 
Business? (If not removed, no questions/discussion) 

III Minutes (For Action) 
IV Community Communication 
V Old Business 
  Quarterly progress report on strategic plans and goals 
  Other 
VI Consent Agenda (For Action) 
  Approval of Capital Expenditure Requests  
  Approval of Bad Debts 
  Approval of Policies on Final Reading 
  Other Requiring Board Action 
 
VII New Business (Review and Questions/Comments) 
  Significant Emerging Issues 
  Other 
   
VIII Reports 
  Chief Executive Officer and Guests Verbal Reports 
  Chief Executive Officer Report (Verbal) 
  President of Medical Staff Report (Verbal) 
  County Commissioner Liaison Report (Verbal) 
   

Senior Leader and Board Committee Reports 
   Senior Leader Reports (Written) 
   Chief Clinical Officer 
   Chief Experience Officer 
   Chief Financial Officer 
   Chief Nursing Officer 
  Board Committee Reports (Written or Verbal) 
   Executive Oversight and Compensation Committee 
   Joint Conference Committee 
   Building and Grounds Committee 

36/136



   Compliance Committee 
   Governance Committee 
   Quality Committee 
   Human Resources Committee 
   Finance and Audit Committee 
    Information Services Report 
    Committee Meeting Information 
   Foundation Board Report 
IX Contracts 
 
X Good of the Order 
 
XI Executive Session [W.S. 16-4-405 (a) (ix)] 
 
XII Action Following Executive Session 
 
XIII Adjournment 
   

37/136



 
 

                     ORIENTATION MEMO 
 

 
 

Board Meeting Date:3/5/2025  
 
Topic for Old & New Business Items: 
Old Business – Professional Practice Review Plan (Medical Staff Peer Review) 
 
Policy or Other Document: 

 ☒ Revision 

 ☐ New 
 
Brief Senior Leadership Comments: 
CMO was removed from II C – indicated on document in blue for ease of locating. 

 

 Board Committee Action: 

For review of removal and re-approval 
 
Policy or Other Document: 

     ☐ For Review Only 

 ☒ For Board Action 
 
Legal Counsel Review: 

 ☐ In House Comments:. 

 ☐ Board  Comments:. 
 
Senior Leadership Recommendation: 
Recommend re-approving with the one change of CMO being removed. 

38/136



 
 

                     ORIENTATION MEMO 
 

 
 

Board Meeting Date:3/5/2025  
 
Topic for Old & New Business Items: 
New Business – Board Quality Charter 
 
Policy or Other Document: 

 ☒ Revision 

 ☐ New 
 
Brief Senior Leadership Comments: 
Made edits to the attendees of the meeting.  Added the non-voting community 
member. 

 

 Board Committee Action: 

As above 
 
Policy or Other Document: 

     ☒ For Review Only 

 ☐ For Board Action 
 
Legal Counsel Review: 

 ☐ In House Comments:. 

 ☐ Board  Comments:. 

 
Senior Leadership Recommendation: 
Recommend first read with pending approval at April’s meeting. 

39/136



����	
������������������������������  !�"#$�%&��'#"�#(��	#�%&�� ���	)#*���!#�� +	������,�'�
-�.�*�/#)#*��01234�562789:�;1<<899==�;>239=3�?@A@BCBD@�EF�GHIGE?BJ�KL#� 	! �
#��M��L#�+	������N�))���##�ON�))���##P��
�����

�
���L#�Q��!$��M�K!	
�##
�OQ��!$P��*���
�R$	���!���*$��"#!
�/L��$	��#
�!#/�!$�*/��L#�$#��"#!���M�
�M#S�T	�����S� ���#*�U�#*�#!#$���!#�(��L��L#�#V #������*��M���*��*	�	
��) !�"#)#*���
�
#��M�!�L�W#��(X�@BY@��X�Z=[\8981\�1]�562789:J�+	���������.#)�!����̂�
 ������M��(##�(��#!�N�	*���Ô�
 ����P��
��� ���#*�U�#*�#!#$���))��)#*�����#V�#��#*�#S���*
�
�#*����	
�*/�W#
�� !�����#
�M�!� !��#

��) !�"#)#*�������L�#"#��L#�W#
���	���)#
�M�!��	!� ���#*�
X��X�KL#��*
���	�#��M�.#$���*#�O�_.P�$#R*#
�L#���L���!#�T	�������
�̀�L#�$#/!##����(L��L�L#���L���!#�
#!"��#
�M�!��*$�"�$	��
��*$� � 	�����*
��*�!#�
#��L#���-#��L��$��M�$#
�!#$�L#���L��	���)#
��*$��!#���*
�
�#*��(��L��	!!#*�� !�M#

��*���-*�(�#$/#Xa�KL#��_.�$#R*#
��L#�
�V�ObP�$�)#*
��*
��M�T	�������
c�dX�?AFBS�$�#
�*���L�!)�eX�@fCBghS�$#��"#!#$�(��L�	��	**#�#

�!��$#���
�iX�BFFB;@fjBS�W�
#$��*��L#�W#
��
��#*��R��-*�(�#$/#��	!!#*�����"����W�#�kX�BFFf;fBD@S�$�#
�*���(�
�#�!#
�	!�#
�lX�B5Hf@A0gBS�W�
#$�L#���L�*##$
�*��� #!
�*����L�!���#!�
���
�bX�GA@fBD@m;BD@BIBZS�!#
 #��M	���*$��	
��)�n#$�����!$�*/���� ���#*�
�*##$
��*$�"��	#
���X�A69>1389:J��X�KL#���))���##�L�
�*��#V !#

#$��!��) ��#$� �(#!��!��	�L�!���X����X�I=op1\o8q87898=oJ�rstuv�wxtyz{|�}s~~z{{���}�tu{�u����{uz���v�������������z�zty��s�|�t{��{{��������{�t{�u~�~suzty��syz�|�{t{��s~��syz�|������������}s�|uz��{����������~suzty��s��z{ty�s������{�t{�u�}sx�{| �t�����s���
40/136



���	
�����
������������������������������������
������������������
��������������
 ���
����
���!��"�
������������
��#�$����#�������#���
 ������
���%�����
������������������&�����������
���
����
����
�����'���
 ����������
 �� ���(��"�
�������������#)������ �������� �
���� ��#�����*�������
���	��������
���
 �*����
��+����#�,*	*+-������������.��"�
����������������#�$����#�������#���
 ������
���%�����
���������������� � �������
�������������
�������
��������������
��������/��"�
����������������#�$����#�������#�������
���%�����
������������������&������0���� ���� ����������
 � �������
����������1��2���������+�������+����#�3��
������� ��
� ��#�����&������������4����
��5����#�6������7#���
��8�������
�����&�������
 �9���:��
�����������
���
 ������$��
�����������
����
���� ���
���

�����
������������;��"�
�������������������
����������<�����
 ������������� ���0����������
����
������������ ����
�������������
�����
 �����������������=��2�����������&������0���

���*	*+�*�
��*����
��+����#�*�
���
 �3
����
��
����������*�
����
 ��������
 ������*�
���������>��� ������������������?��� �������������$����#��
 ���������������������#��
���)����� ��
 ����������&������0����������
 �����������������@���
��������������������������������$����#�������#���
 ������
�)��
���� �������A��2������
 ������
�B����
���������#������ �
������ �����#���������������
�)��
���� ��$����#������������
� ����������&������0��������������
��!C��7��'�������+�
����D�� ����������������������������<���
����������������������  ����
�������
��
����
��������������������$����#)����� ���������
��������������
�� �
�������
�������� ���������������@
���
 ������ ������
���$������
����!!��2������
 ��>��� ������������������ �
������ �����#���������������
�)��
���� ��$����#����������
�� � ��!(��2������
 ��� ������
�����������������>��� ��	E��FGHIGJKLKGMN����9�������������
���������������������������������O�����,(-�>��� �����������
�����������������������������������3%��������P@�����������"� ���3%�����
���P@�����������6�
�
����P@�����������4����
��P@�������������
����P@�����"� ����P@��>�� �
��,"P>-���
��5����#�8���������5����#�8����������
 �
�����������
�������#�����
����������
�� ��#�����>��� �*���� �
���3����������������������������������
�������������!��9�����������#��
������
#� ����������@��������������������%��������������� �������������
������������������������������������
 �������������
 ��� ���������
������
�������������QRSTU�VWSXYZ[�\R]]YZẐ̂�\_STẐT̀�âZTŶb̂U�cdedcdf̀�ghhYiYSX�iRj[�SZ�_ZZjkeelm̂ ẐmSẐT]̂]RTYSX̀jRXYi[lZSZ̀iR]ejRXYi[enofcndpfè�\Rj[TYq_Z�r�dcdf�s ]̂RTYSX�tRljYZSX�Rh�um̂ ẐmSẐT�\RWvZ[ wSq̂�d�Rh�x
41/136



���	

�������������
����
�
��������������� !�"�� ����#�#�"!��$���� %%�&%��$��'( )��!�*�+ ,�����-�.�%�/��&��0,�1����&����-� �#��$����#�1�#( )�,��+&���")��%&,��,��1 �/����2$������#�1�#( )��� %%����"�,���$ ))��&��$ 1��1&�����+,�1�)������3��4�� ++&����#�/&��(���!����"�,�� !���,1��&���$��/&�������� �� ��&�51&��������"�,��6��	

����78�
���
9�4��2$��/&���������$ ))�������&��$)!� �#� �����#�#��6.��:
;�<��9�4��2$��=&��������>�))�,��() ,)!�,�/��1�� �#�,�1��>��$��%&))&>����,�+&,����?��2$���&��$)!�@( )��!-�� %��!-� �#�+ �������A+�,���/��,�+&,���&%��$��B&�+�� )����=����,��%&,���#�/ ,�� �#���#�/ �#�@( ,��,)!� �#� ��( )�,�+&,���3��C�,�&(��C %��!�D1����-� ���$�!�&//(,�E��F&&��= (���4� )!����GF=4H� �#�I �)(,���&#�� �#�D%%�/���4� )!����GI�D4H�,�+&,���J��D�1�,&������&%�= ,��0) ��D1 )( ��&�-������ ��( ))!�K��0,&�,����&��+�,%&,� �/����+,&1������� �#L&,�� %��!��& )�� �� )����#�>��$��#����M�#�+,�&,��!� ,� ������$��0.0C�0) �� �#L&,�&�$�,�+,�&,�������#����M�#�"!��$��0.0C�=&����������� /��&��+) ��%&,� ��N��2$�� ��( )�0.0C�0) ��O��2$��,��()���&%��$��"����� )�=()�(,��&%�C %��!��(,1�!�P��4//,�#�� ��&��,�+&,���>$���,�/��1�#�?Q��.�%�/��&��0,�1����&��0,&�, ��4��( )�D1 )( ��&��??��0�,%&,� �/��.�+,&1������ �#�0 ������C %��!�G0.0CH�0) ��4��( )�D1 )( ��&�� �#�0�,%&,� �/��.�+,&1������G0.H �#�0 ������C %��!�F�+&,��?���C(�� ,!�&%�/)���/ )�/&��, /��,�1��>�� ��( ))!�?3��4(#����&%�/,�#���� )����+,&/���� ��)� ����1�,!��>&�G�H�!� ,��?E��4(#����&%�+��,�,�1��>-�&��&����+,&%����&� )�+, /��/���1 )( ��&���GR00DH-�%&/(��#�+,&%����&� )�+, /��/���1 )( ��&���GI00DH��&���&,���-� ��( ))!�6..��S�T�
�������9�4��UV�C� ��3J5�5P?Q��'( )��!�� � �������%(�/��&���%&,�$� )�$�/ ,��% /�)�����W�/&�M#���� )��!W����(���!W�>$���)��")&>���W�+��,�,�1��>��C("��/��&��4��X��UV�C� ��3J5�5P?Q�G#H�=��4))�@( )��!� �#�+ ������� %��!�# � ��$ ))�"��/&���#�,�#��$��+,&+�,�!�&%��$��B&�+�� )��*��=&�M#���� )��!��$ ))�"��� ��� ���#-�" ��#�&��%())�,��+�/��&%��$��+ �����Y��,��$���&�+,�1 /!� �#����Z��+����>��$�B&�+�� )�0&)�/!� �#�C� ��� �#�I�#�, )�F��() ��&����&1�,������$��/&�M#���� )��!�&%�@( )��!� �#�+ ������� %��!�>&,Z��[\]̂_�̀a]bcde�f\ggcddhh�fi]̂dĥj�khd̂chlh_�mnonmnpj�qrrcsc]b�s\te�]d�iddtuoovwhhdw]dĥghg\̂c]bjt\bcsevd]djs\got\bcseoxypmxnzpoj�f\têc{id�|�nmnp�}hg\̂c]b�~\vtcd]b�\r��whhdw]dĥ�f\a�de �]{h�z�\r��
42/136



����	
��������������������������  !����"�� �#��$���	�%&'()*+(,-./012345-6.-678('39:;3-):<3634(<=>4-'	�?@A?@BCBDE??FCG�HI�J

IKL��%���������MM���N���O����	���M�	�P�Q	RR�����EN��P�N	�ST����	��KJP����ST����	���������	����U��%I
������M�
�����P����������MV		�Q��������%�����M@	�W������H	M�IUU�T������%���KX�Y�M����ZT���	�	U��	��T��MP����P��U	�R���	�N���O����MU	��P������	���K[\\'],-.9;̂-_]('.12(<3*0:]̀ `3**--abcdbaeaf;̂-_]('.])̂'2+*--+gbdbaeafh-,3-i-.(6.[\\'],-.9_]('.:;('*-'9̂;-12(<3*0:]̀ `3**--JP�j	��Mk�����%Q	RR�����:(*-l]'09_]('.:]̀ `3**--+m:]̀ `3**--:;('*-'+3̂*<-912(<3*0:]̀ `3**--H$�Qj	��M	UJ�������='3l36(<[.]\*3]69nbgbaecoh-,3+3]69nbadbaecopcbaqbaeaepgbcbaeae7egbedbaeaf7ecbcdbaead

rstuvwxtyz{|}s~~z{{��}�tu{�u���{uz���v�����������z�zty�s�|t{�{{��������{�t{�u~�~suzty��syz�|�{t{��s~��syz�|�����������}s�|uz��{�������~suzty�s��z{tys�����{�t{�u}sx�{| �t���s��
43/136



44/136



45/136



46/136



47/136



48/136



49/136



 

MHSC Board of Trustees: March 2025 

Chief Clinical Officer (CCO) Report 

Report prepared and submitted by: Kari Quickenden, Pharm.D., MHSA 

1. In mid-February, our large volume IV bags went on allocation.  As of 03/01/2025, BBraun, our supplier, will no 

longer supply fluids to non-contracted customers, which should assist in alleviating supply concerns.  There has 

been no need to restrict or substitute fluids while on allocation in February.  

2. The Pharmacy Department, in coordination with the vendor, is updating the software on all of our Pyxis cabinets.  

The upgrades will be complete on 03/03/2025.  Pyxis cabinets are automated dispensing cabinets for medications.  

The software upgrade will require a user who is overriding medication or removing medication from a non-

profiled cabinet to enter five characters when searching for medication.  The Institute for Safe Medication 

Practices recommends that all automated dispensing cabinets have this functionality to reduce the chance of a 

medication error.  

3. Radiation Oncology is beginning to take referrals for the treatment of osteoarthritis with low-dose radiation 

therapy.  Please see the second page of my report for more information on this service.  

4. As part of our ongoing compliance with regulatory and accreditation standards, Nutrition Services and IT have 

successfully installed electronic temperature monitoring devices in nourishment refrigerators across the 

organization.  This technology will continually track temperatures and alert staff if a temperature is not in range 

so they can promptly follow up and take action when appropriate.  

5. The Clinical Laboratory traveled to 15 different draw-sites in January and February to complete school district 

health fairs.  They completed draws on 484 patients at these health fairs.  I want to thank Lena Warren, Patty 

O’Lexey, Aimee Urbin, the Patient Access Team, and the Clinical Laboratory Team for making these health fairs 

possible for our community. 

6. The Quality Department reports various metrics and data to CMS.  Much of this data is available on the Care 

Compare website.  CMS conducts periodic audits of measures that require a quality analyst to abstract 

information from electronic medical records.  CMS completed audits on two measures.  The first measure they 

audited was OP-23.  OP-23 measures the timeliness of a head CT/MRI interpretation for suspected stroke 

patients.  The other measure CMS audited was OP-18b, the median time of ED arrival to ED departure.  I would 

like to recognize Kalpana Pokhrel for her excellent work, as she performs the majority of the chart abstractions.  

We recently received our audit results for quarters one and two of 2024.  We are proud to say that we received a 

score of 100% on the audit.  Should the accuracy of the results decrease to less than 75%, we risk losing 2% of 

our Medicare payment.  Again, thank you to Kalpana and the entire Quality Department for their diligence in 

abstracting charts.  

7. We recently received our January 2025 Care Compare report.  Several patient experience measures increased 

from the January 2024 Care Compare report to the January 2025 Care Compare report.  In the report's Timely and 

Effective Care domain, our OP-29 measure performance (appropriate follow-up interval for normal colonoscopy 

in average-risk patients) is in the top 10% of hospitals.  Our compliance with OP-23 (head CT/MRI scan results 

for acute ischemic stroke or hemorrhagic stroke patients who received head CT/MRI scan interpretation within 45 

minutes of ED arrival) improved from 75% on the January 2024 Care Compare report to 92% on the January 

2025 Care Compare report.   

 

Respectfully submitted, 

Kari Quickenden  

 

 

 

50/136



Treating Osteoarthritis with Low-Dose Radiation Therapy 

Radiation Oncology 

Dr. Joshua Binks 

307-212-7760 

 

Who is a good candidate?  

 A patient who is 50+ with osteoarthritis of the foot, ankle, knee, hip, elbow, shoulder, wrist, hand/fingers 

 A patient who continues to have symptoms after conservative management 

 A patient who wants pain relief without medication, injections, or surgery 

 

How does radiation therapy relieve pain from osteoarthritis? 

 A low dose of radiation is directed at the site of the arthritis, and it decreases the body’s production of 

inflammation in that area, which leads to pain relief and increased mobility 

 

How many treatments and how often? 

 A patient would receive 6 treatments, 3 per week, over the course of 2 weeks 

 Each treatment only takes about 15 minutes 

 

What are the risks or side effects and benefits? 

 Because the dose of radiation is so low, there is very little to no risk of side effects 

 The greatest risk is that the treatments won’t be effective for complete pain relief 

 Studies show that approximately 70% of patients have significant to complete pain relief and improved mobility 

 The results can last for two years, and the patient would have the option to undergo treatment once more 

 

Does insurance cover this treatment? 

 Medicare and other insurances should cover the treatment of osteoarthritis with radiation  

 

How do I set an appointment? 

 Contact the Radiation Oncology front office at 307-212-7760 

 

51/136



MHSC Board of Trustees: March 2025 

Chief Experience Officer (CXO) Report 

 

Irene continues working on the update to the organization chart. The departments I lead have been notified and I 

have been meeting with leaders and scheduled SWOT analysis meetings with Human Resources, Nutrition 

Services, and Patient Experience Departments. I am also scheduling dates to shadow department staff to “look, 

listen, and learn” to better serve.     

1. Patient Experience Pillar 

A. Continue to utilize our person-centered care culture to improve the patient experience and improve 

the satisfaction for our patients. 

 

1) Objective: Provide compassionate care to every life we touch for every patient, every time, 

aligning with the mission, vision and values of MHSC.  

a) Measurement: “Degree to which all staff showed compassion” Improve HCAHPS score by 3 

percentage points per year. 67.11% (2024), 76.92% (January & YTD 2025) 

2) Objective: Improve patient experience and patient satisfaction scores.  

a) Measurement: Improve HCAHPS scores by 3 percentage points per year in the following 

measures: 

 Hospital Environment: “Cleanliness & Quietness” 67.56% (2024),  Cleanliness was 

separated out as a single category for 2025, and “Restfulness” added in 2025 (61.54%) 

 Discharge Information: 88.80% (2024), 92.31% (January & YTD 2025) 

 Care Transitions (No longer included in the survey) 

The final calendar year data was completed February 18, 2025. We did not achieve our year one 

strategic plan patient experience goals. We have begun rolling out a hospital-wide compassion 

initiative with a focus on active listening for Quarters 1 and 2. Action plan updates are underway 

for hospital environment and discharge information improvement efforts.  

HCAHPS surveys have been updated for 2025 to see significant changes including: new 

dimensions focusing on "care coordination," "restfulness of the hospital environment," and 

"information about symptoms," a longer data collection period of 49 days, the option for proxy 

respondents to answer surveys, and a shift towards web-first survey administration modes, allowing 

for more online responses; essentially providing a more comprehensive view of patient care and 

satisfaction by adding new questions related to these areas. Setting realistic and achievable goals 

based on comprehensive data is crucial. Consistency and a long-term perspective are essential for 

achieving meaningful and sustainable improvements in patient care and satisfaction. 

Patient & Family Advisory Council Partners: The Council  met in February and received an update 

on the Lab Expansion Project. They provided insight on the importance of active listening to the 

patient and their family. The next Council meeting is set for Monday, March 31, and the question for 

discussion is, “What does the “perfect process” look like to you when your physician sends an order 

for tests to the Hospital?” Our activity that night is to assist with Central Scheduling process 

mapping. I shared information about our PFAC process when I  joined Karali Plonsky, Patient 

Experience Director, on the KREO radio program with Johnny K on February 21. 

 

  

52/136



B. Build the capacity of our Directors through a formal training program.  

 

We are exploring offering PEAK Leadership Training for mid-level management in the coming 

months, as well as options for employee evaluation formal training. We are making plans to present 

Leading in a Person-Centered Care Culture Middle Manager Training in April and May.  

 

2. Employee Experience Pillar 

A. Improve employee retention and employee satisfaction for a happier, healthier staff. 

 

1) Objective: Weave our culture throughout HR and management practices to recruit, reward, and 

retain staff committed to carrying out our mission. 

a) Measurement: Reduce staff turnover by 10% per year, using the current turnover rate.  
 

Turnover numbers were reviewed at the January Performance Improvement and Patient 

Safety (PIPS) Committee meeting. The goal for CY2024 was 18.9% and we met that goal 

with 18% at year-end.   
 

b) Measurement: Improve our employee engagement scores by 3% per year. 
 

MHSC’s 2024 employee engagement survey score was 3.91/5.0 with a 52% response rate. 

The respondent distribution was: 26% Highly Engaged, 41% Engaged, 26% Neutral, and 8% 

Disengaged. The strengths are in Team Collaboration and Care Quality (4.43), Climate of 

Trust (4.01), and Personal and Organizational Alignment (4.59).  Opportunities include 

Feedback and Communication from Leaders (3.85) and Encouraging Teamwork Further 

(4.11). Leaders are reviewing improvement strategies to develop action plans.   

 

I was fortunate to be invited to attend the American Hospital Association Rural Healthcare Conference 

February 23-26 in San Antonio. The sessions I focused on were Workforce and Governance. I am grateful 

for the opportunity and am preparing my notes and copies of presentations to make available to other 

leaders who may be interested in the information. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

Cindy Nelson  

 

  

53/136



 

 

 

54/136



MHSC Board of Trustees: March 2025 

Chief Financial Officer (CFO) Report 

Report prepared and submitted by:  Tami Love 

 

Financial summary - Revenue increased slightly in January coming in at $24.2 million, but under 
budget by $1.8 million.    Expenses were higher than in the previous month at $11.7 million and were 
over budget.  Our bottom line for January was a slight increase.  Through the seven months of the 
fiscal year, our gross revenue remains over budget by $1.1 million and expenses are under budget 
by $1 million.   Revenue is projected to be lower in February, at $23 million and with expenses 
staying stable, the estimated bottom line will be a loss for the month. 

 
Critical Access.  We received a letter of approval from CMS on 01/02/2025 with an effective date of 
12/6/24 for the new Medicare billing number.  We decided not to appeal the effective date due to 
the risk of an appeal taking another 90 days.  We released about $18 million Medicare claims in the 
week of January 6.  There was a delay due to the confusion of having two active Medicare numbers 
in their system which resulted in almost all Medicare payments stopping.   We were notified on 
Monday, February 17 that the claims had started processing.  We expect to see the first payments 
from this delay starting the last week of February.  On Tuesday, we received our Noridian approval 
and CAH rate letter.  We are working on making changes to our billing system for the new numbers 
and we will start releasing our CAH claims back to 12/06/24.  We plan to send small test batches to 
watch the whole claims cycle before releasing the $20 million in claims held. Historically, Medicare 
monthly payments average $2.5 million per month which is impacting both cash collections and 
Days Cash on Hand. 
 
Inflation and Tariffs Impact.  Vizient, our Group Purchasing Organization (GPO), released their 
Spend Management Outlook edition focusing on inflation estimates for fiscal year 2026 and the 
potential impact from the new tariffs.  We use this resource during budgeting to get a preview of the 
medical supply market, including pharmaceuticals, equipment, and medical and surgical 
products.  AHA, CLA, and HFMA have also released information on expectations of how the 
planned tariffs will impact healthcare.  They report the newly implemented tariffs will affect 
pharmaceuticals and computer chips (Mexico) and electronics and medical supplies (China).  We 
believe that not only will costs increase, but we may start seeing delays in deliveries and shortages 
as hospitals fight for limited resources. 
 
It is predicted that hospital supply costs will rise by at least 15% and pharmaceuticals will see an 
increase of 10% with the new tariffs.  Prior to the tariff announcement, the expected inflation rates 
were 2.3% for medical supplies and 3.9% for pharmaceuticals.  We will work with our GPO to review 
current supplier contracts and to renegotiate pricing agreements if available. 

55/136



 

MHSC Board of Trustees: 3/2025 

Chief Nursing Officer (CNO) Report 

Report prepared and submitted by: Ann Marie Clevenger DNP, RN, NEA-BC 

1. Congratulations to MHSC Nurses recently selected as Wyoming Nurses Association (WNA) 

Board Members. 

a. Lacy Love BSN, RN, Clinical Lead at MHSC, WNA Director at Large 

b. Julia Samz, MSN, RN, currently working on her MBA in Healthcare, ED Nurse at 

MHSC, WNA Director at Large 

2. MHSC Emergency Operations 

a. Thank you to all those involved in the tunnel incident in Green River. MHSC’s 

Incident Command was initiated following emergency operations procedures. The 

extraordinary teamwork during this event demonstrated the hospital's true mission, 

vision, values, and care for the community and each other. Thank you to all of our 

community partners.   

b. MHSC will participate in a community-wide emergency management drill on April 

12, 2025. Stevie Nosich, Emergency Management & Environmental Safety 

Coordinator, and Tiffany Uranker, Emergency Services Nursing Director, coordinate 

with outside agencies for our participation. Stevie will email the information. 

3. End-Stage Renal Disease (ESRD) Prospective Payment System (PPS) Transitional Drug 

Add-on Payment Adjustment (TDAPA) 

a. CMS recently adjusted payment for specific renal dialysis medications. The 

medications will be covered under the monthly reimbursement MHSCs receive, 

which includes per-treatment bundled service charges. This results in the patients' 

inability to obtain payment for some of the medications filled by their pharmacy of 

choice (CMS expects these to be included in the per treatment bundled charges). 

These medications are taken daily with meals. A group has met to discuss options as 

our Cardinal Pharmacy is not a “retail pharmacy.” The group is exploring options in 

our community to serve our patients and their ability to obtain the necessary 

medications. 

4. Community Meeting on Workplace Violence 

a. On February 27th, a small group of community leaders and members of MHSC met to 

discuss the care of mental health patients in our community. Topics included patients 

at MHSC awaiting placement at a higher-level care facility, such as the state hospital. 

b. Discussions also included the safety of patients and staff, including workplace 

violence against healthcare and law enforcement professionals and mitigation 

strategies to limit risk.  

5. Strategic Initiative: Improving and establishing outreach to the community and outlying areas 

in mental health- 

Governor Gordon implemented an initiative to improve mental health awareness, education, 

knowledge, and resources. Throughout our state, education is provided for FREE to learn 

about mental health, suicide prevention, and services within our community. FREE 

TRAINING will be held in person at MHSC on Monday, April 14th, and at WWCC on the 

15th.  

56/136



 

57/136



Free Online Training 

This online training includes didactics, discussions, videos, 
and skills practice, designed to enhance participants' 
competence, confidence, and comfort in managing 

individuals at risk for suicide. Over the course of two hours 
each Thursday session (totaling 6 hours), participants will 
advance their skills in evidence-based risk assessment and 

decision-making for at-risk individuals. This training is open 
to everyone, including educators, faith leaders, mental 
and medical healthcare providers, peer support, first 

responders, and others interested in suicide prevention. 

  

📅 Dates: Mondays, May 5th, 12th, & 19th, 2025 

⏳ Time: 1:00 PM – 3:00 PM MT 

ℹ️ Note: To receive 6 hours of Continuing Education credit, 
attendance at all three 2-hour sessions is required. 

 

LEARN 
MORE  

 

 

Please let me know if you have any additional insight that may be helpful in this report. Thank you for 

your support of the MHSC teams. 

Ann 

 

 

58/136



Building and Grounds Committee Meeting 
February 18, 2025 

 
 

The Building and Grounds Committee met in regular session via Zoom on  
February 18, 2025, at 2:30 PM  

 
In Attendance:  Mr. Craig Rood, Trustee, Chairman 

Mr. Marty Kelsey, Trustee 
Ms. Irene Richardson, CEO  

          Mr. Gerry Johnston, Director of Facilities 
Mr. Steven Skorcz, Facilities Supervisor 
Ms. Michele Schmidt, PlanOne Architects 

 
 
Mr. Rood called the meeting to order once a quorum was established. 
 
Mr. Rood and Ms. Richardson gave compliments to staff for response to the 
tunnel disaster.  
 
Mr. Rood asked for a motion to approve the agenda. Mr. Kelsey made a motion 
to approve the agenda. Ms. Richardson seconded; the motion passed. 
 
Mr. Rood called for a motion to approve the minutes for the January meeting.  
Mr. Johnston moved to approve the minutes. Ms. Richardson seconded; the 
motion passed. 
 
Maintenance Metrics 
Mr. Johnston presented the Maintenance metrics. No questions on the 
metrics. 
 
Old Business – Project Review 
 
Oncology Suite renovation 
Mr. Johnston explained that other than a nurse call pull station for the 
bathroom, the project was complete. State had signed off and the area was 
currently occupying the area.  

59/136



Medical Imaging Core, X-ray, and Fluoro 
Mr. Johnston stated that the area was in the demolition stage. Equipment, 
cabinets, walls, and fixtures have been removed. 
 
Laboratory Expansion project - SLIB 
Mr. Johnston said that the floor had been poured and that the main support 
steel was being erected.  
 
MOB Entrance – SLIB 
Mr. Rood asked if the MOB entrance was still on hold till spring. Mr. Johnston 
verified that it was on hold till spring. 
 
Master Plan 
Ms. Richardson said that part of the master plan could be done right away 
using the $500,000 capital fund from the County. The projects are the OB tub 
replacement and a new roof for the powerhouse.  
 
Tabled Projects 
Mr. Rood asked about tabled projects. No change in tabled projects. 
 
New Business 
A discussion about the order of approval for project priority. It was confirmed 
that it would be B&G committee, Board of Trustees, and County 
Commissioners. 
 
Other 
There was a discussion on the impact of the possible property tax reduction 
bill and county funding. Ms. Richardson stated that a majority of our funding is 
internal and only a small portion of the budget comes from the County. 
 
Mr. Rood adjourned the meeting. 
 
Submitted by Steven D. Skorcz Jr. 

60/136



Governance Committee Minutes 
February 17, 2025 

 
Attendance:  Marty Kelsey, Chair; Kandi Pendleton, Member; Irene Richardson, 
Member. 
 
Revised Agenda Format for Board of Trustees Regular Meetings: 
The Committee approved a revised agenda format for the regular meetings of the 
Board of Trustees. It will be presented at the March meeting for approval via the 
consent agenda. 
 
Agenda Format for Executive Sessions of the Board of Trustees: 
The Committee approved an Executive Session Agenda Format. This format will 
be presented to the Board by President Sowada at the next Executive Session of 
the Board for discussion. 
 
The next meeting of the Governance Committee is scheduled for Monday, March 
17th at 1:30 p.m. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 2:10 p.m. 
 
 

61/136



 
 

Executive Update – MHSC Board Quality Committee Meeting 
PROVIDED BY Stephanie Mlinar, Kari Quickenden, Ann Clevenger, Tami Love, Irene Richardson, Cindy Nelson 

REPORTING DATE February 2025 Board Quality Committee Monthly Meeting  

General Highlights 

• January 2025 Care Compare report was presented with comparative data from the January 2024 Care Compare report 

Patient Experience Pillar 

FY 2025 Priorities and Goals: 

• Care Transition/Care Coordination (HCAHPS)*:   57.4 percentage points by end of CY 2024, stretch goal 58%  
(re-evaluate goals in Jan ’25)   Baseline data: CY 2023 - 54.41% 
 

• Discharge information (HCAHPS)*:   89.25 percentage points by end of CY 2024, stretch goal 90%  
      (re-evaluate goals in Jan ’25)           Baseline data:  CY 2023 – 86.25% 

Additional Strategic Objectives: 
 

• Degree to which all staff showed compassion (HCAHPS)* 
o Baseline data CY 2023 

OB Baseline data 81.40% percentage points                 MS/ICU Baseline data 70.59% percentage points  
Surgery Baseline Data 91.03% percentage points                MOB Clinics Baseline Data 80.18% percentage pt.  
College Drive Clinics Baseline Data 82.36% percentage points         ED Baseline Data 70.19% percentage points 

Radiation & Medical Oncology are not surveyed through Press Ganey 
 

• Hospital Environment (HCAHPS)* 
o Cleanliness sub measurement:  Baseline MHSC data (CY 2023): 74.54% 
o Quietness sub measurement:    Baseline MHSC data (CY 2023):  64.02% 

 
Strategic Initiatives: 

• Formal leader training program  

• Dedication of one Senior Leadership meeting per month for implementation and management of 3-year strategic plan 

 
 

Accomplishments Issues Impact Action Plan 

Care Transition/Care 
Coordination 
Continuing with current plans 
Added a Case Manager focused 
on ED and OB patients for 
plans of safe care. 
 

  
Safe plans of care help 
with transitions in care. 

 
Re-evaluate goals at the end of 
February 2025 when all inpatient data 
from CY 2024 is completed/reported. 

Discharge Information:   
Continuing with current plans 
Focus on using the discharge 
packet during the entire stay. 
Common medications listed for 
review during stay. 

  Re-evaluate goals at the end of 
February 2025 when all inpatient data 
from CY 2024 is completed/reported. 

 
Compassion:  
OB, MS and MOB clinics  

  Re-evaluate goals at the end of 
February 2025 when all inpatient data 
from CY 2024 is completed/reported. 

 
Hospital Environment – 
Cleanliness:   
 

   
Re-evaluate goals at the end of 
February 2025 when all inpatient data 
from CY 2024 is completed/reported. 

Hospital Environment – 
Quietness:  

  Re-evaluate goals at the end of 
February 2025 when all inpatient data 
from CY 2024 is completed/reported. 
 

62/136



 
 

Accomplishments Issues Impact Action Plan 

Formal leader training:   
All sessions completed 

 Positively received by 
leadership team 

This goal is met 

Dedication of one Senior 
Leader meeting per month for 
Strategic Plan 

None identified 
 

 This is ongoing. 

 

Employee Experience Pillar 

Strategic Objectives:  

• Reduce staff turnover by 10% per year, using the current turnover rate 

o Baseline/target:  Target Goal of 9.9% (a 10% reduction) in the staff turnover rate from June 2024 to the end of 

the calendar year 2024, using the current turnover rate as of June 2024 (Using a baseline of 11%, 11 x .10= 

1.1; 11 - 1.1= 9.9)   

• Improve our employee engagement scores by 3% per year 

Initiatives: 

• Hire a consultant to evaluate and review salaries at a minimum of every three years 

• Comprehensive program for directors to develop relationships, etc. 

• Develop plan for success sharing bonus for employees if goals are reached 

 

Accomplishments Issues Impact Action Plan 

Reduce Staff turnover by 10% 
per year, using the current 
turnover rate.  Meetings have 
occurred and include 
discussion on the travel staff 
and recruit and retention 
measurements/initiatives in 
financial stewardship 

None identified  The plan continues to be 
documented in the tracking system. 
Additional goal to remain under 
national staff turnover rate (YTD 
22.7%) 
Cross-trained staff list available and 
being used for retention.  Over 40 
nursing staff are cross-trained and 
competent to provide care in 
additional units. 

Employee Engagement Survey 
scheduled for this fall 

The goal lists that it 
will improve by 3% per 
year. The last survey 
was 2022. 

A new survey vendor is 
being used this year to 
combine the timing with 
the Culture of Safety 
Survey. Calculating a 
percentage increase may 
prove difficult because of 
two different companies. 

Employee Engagement survey 
completed.  HR will present overall 
findings 
 
Historically, the Culture of Safety 
Survey is done every 2 years. We 
will be able to look at engagement 
scores in 2026 if we keep the 
current schedule and vendor. 

Salaries were reviewed with 
adjustments made at the 
beginning of FY 2025 

   

Comprehensive program for 
Directors (also listed under 
patient experience pillar) 

  In progress 

Success sharing bonus 
implemented at the end of 
June 2024 

   

 
 
 
 
 
 

63/136



 
 

Quality & Safety Pillar 

FY 2025 Priorities and Strategic Objectives: 

• C. Diff:  No more than one reportable case from 4/1/2024 to 3/31/2025 (re-evaluate goals in April ’25) 

• SEP-1 Bundle Compliance:  78% compliance by 6/30/2025, stretch goal 83% (re-evaluate in June ’25) 

• OP23 -Stroke measure:  95% compliance by 6/30/2025, stretch goal 100% (re-evaluate in June ’25) 

Initiatives: 

• Create process improvement position that will require Lean training and be responsible for leading improvement efforts 

• Create patient and staff education 

• 100% of clinical staff will complete TeamSTEPPS training by the end of three years 

• In-house legal counsel will provide a “risk management minute” quarterly each year and provide a recording for all staff 

• Develop methods that will allow Synergi to categorize reports and create ability to track and trend data 

• Utilize Health Equity Plan to promote the highest quality outcomes and safest care for all people 

 

Accomplishments Issues Impact Action Plan 

 
C. Diff: 
BioFire testing is available with 
reflex testing.   
 
Meeting goal 

 
None identified 

 
Interdisciplinary review 
resulted in improved 
process. 

 
Continued monitoring. 

 
Sep-1 Bundle Compliance: 
 
Meeting goal 
 

 
Continuing to work 
through identified 
process 
barriers/challenges 
 

  
Continue weekly OFIs with timely 
feedback to team members. 
Present severe sepsis checklist to ED 
nursing staff and physicians by 2/19. 

 
OP 23 – Stroke Measure: 
 
Meeting and exceeding goal 

 
None identified 

  
Continued monitoring 

 
Process Improvement position   

Recent opening in 
Quality and evaluation 
of department, the 
replacement of the 
position will be for 
process improvement/ 
accreditation 

 
Quality Department 
Director and team 
continue process 
improvement work in 
the interim 

 
Job description developed.  
Competency being developed. 
Interviews being scheduled. 

 
Create Staff and Patient 
Education:  Staff education – 
Prosper training held for 
evidence-based research 
regarding suicide prevention 
offered by community agency 
 
Patient education – educator 
hired, meeting goal 
 

 
None identified 

 Staff:  Reviewing and updating annual 
education courses 
 
Patient: 
Reviewing health literacy tools. 
Shadowing at U of U with unit 
Educator. Evaluating educational tools 
for patients to include in FY 2026. 

Initiative regarding 
TeamSTEPPS. Attendance 
Tracking is in place and the 
activities are open to clinical 
and non-clinical staff.   Current 
clinical staff 79% completion 
 

 
None identified 

 
Improve inter-and 
intradepartmental 
communication 

Three sessions for each of the three 
levels are available for staff to sign up 
each month. 
Monthly report sent to leadership with 
updates on compliance. 
Milestone goal for June 2025 – 85% 
completion rate. 
 

64/136



 
 

Accomplishments Issues Impact Action Plan 

Risk management minutes are 
being presented at medical 
staff meetings. 

None identified Provide education for 
staff, including employed 
medical staff 

 

Synergi report categorization 
with further development for 
HIPAA, grievance/complaint, 
and process improvements 

None identified Further categorization 
increases tracking and 
trending capabilities 

The Patient Safety Organization (PSO) 
contract executed, will begin project 
build within the next two to three 
months. 

Health Equity: AHA HETA 
assessment completed. 
Tailored MHSC’s HE plans and 
charter to match resources and 
strategic goals. 

None identified  Align the age-friendly structural 
measures with health equity efforts. 

 

Regulatory Readiness 

• Departmental rounding continues with collaboration between the Quality Department, Safety Officer and Infection 

Preventionist 

Community, Services and Growth Pillar 

Strategic Objectives: 

• Improve and establish outreach to community and outlying areas  

(Baseline data unavailable, goals are being set by each team) 

o Community education 

o Diabetes Education 

o Care for the caregiver 

o Mental health 

• Improve from a Google 2-star Rating to a Google 3-star rating by the end of three years 
 
 

Initiatives: 

• Utilize master plan to identify areas where we can provide outreach to outlying areas 

• Develop a strategic communication/marketing plan 

• Increase number of community presentations 

 

Accomplishments 
 

Issues Impact Action Plan 

Community Education goal is 
to have a total of 7 
presentations in 2024   
Goal met 
 
 
 
Radiation Oncology is working 
with in-house translators to 
provide Spanish documents in 
the education binder for new 
patients. 
 

Scheduling can 
sometimes be difficult. 
Some departments are 
not as comfortable 
with public speaking. 
 
 
Documents from 
outside entities are 
not in Spanish 

None identified at this 
time 
 
 
 
 
 
 
None identified at this 
time 

Working with School District #1 to 
set up Lunch & Learns. 
 
Additional staff presentations 
occurring in various community 
settings. 
 
RS Chamber 2/13 
GR Chamber 2/19 
YAH 1/28 
 
Monthly radio spots with KREO 
 
 
 
 
 
 

65/136



 
 

Accomplishments Issues Impact Action Plan 

Diabetes Education: Diabetic 
Self-Management Education 
(DSME) site change from 
Public Health to MHSC. There 
were five referrals in the first 
week upon the transition 
from Public Health to MHSC. 

None identified at this 
time 

RN patient educator 
performs the nurse visit, 
and the Director of 
Education is the DSME 
Quality Coordinator. 
Medical Nutrition 
Therapy (MNT) continues 
through MHSC 
Dieticians. Potential 
impact to increase 
appointments as the RN 
patient educator meets 
with patients while 
hospitalized.  

The MHSC Education Director and 
Pt Educator continues to improve 
processes in referrals, 
documentation, and the billing 
process. Next steps include 
awareness of the program with 
providers at MHSC and in our 
community.  The contract will be 
renewed in March. 

Care for the Caregiver: 
Care for the Caregiver team 
members will 
attend/participate/present at 
2 public events to meet the 
community members we 
serve, network with other 
service providers, and build 
relationships in our 
community in 2024.  Goal 
exceeded for CY 2024 with 3 
events attended. 
 

None identified None identified 2025: Care for the Caregiver team 
members will attend/ participate/ 
present at 4 public events  
MHSC will have an employee train 
and be the SWC 211 Ambassador. 
Caregivers need to know the 
services and providers available to 
them in our county and state.  
The employees of MHSC are the 
largest group of caregivers in our 
county and planning is in place for 
providing support. 
 

Mental Health:    8 hours of telehealth offered for 
outpatients on Wednesdays.  
Feedback is positive and patients 
are returning for further visits. 

Improve Google Star Rating 
Meeting and exceeding the 
goal 

None identified   

Utilize Master Plan:  no 
update at this time, planning 
in progress 
 

  Senior leaders will meet to discuss 
priorities. 

Marketing plan is focusing on 
nutrition and sharing our 
successes, on target to meet 
goal 

None identified   

Chronic Care Management is 
working toward increasing 
Medicare annual wellness 
visits. Goal is exceeded as of 
12/4/2024. 

None identified   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

66/136



 
 

Financial Stewardship Pillar 

Strategic Objectives: 

• Improve revenue cycle using CliftonLarsenAllen recommendations 
o Improve Days of Cash on Hand by 10% each year for three years  FY25 = 119, FY26 = 131, FY27 = 144 
o Reduce and maintain Days in A/R to 45 days by the end of 2024  CY 24 Jan-Jul Average 63 days 
o Maintain the level of claims denials at state and national benchmarks (target goal <15% by end of FY 2025) 

CY 24 Apr-June 24.7% 
o Reduce and maintain Days Not Final Billed (DNFB) at five days by the end of 2024  

CY 24 Jan-Aug Average 10.1 days 

• Build the MHSC County Maintenance Fund to $2,000,000 by the end of three years 
7/1/2024 $500,000 rolled over 

• Build and maintain the building fund to the amount of depreciation expense by the end of three years 
6/30/2024 $7,000,000 

• Decrease the number of Nursing and Respiratory Therapy travel staff by 30% per year for three years 
Goal for CY 2024 is a combined RN/RT travel staff of 11.9 using a baseline CY 2023 of 17 total RN/RT travel staff 
Additional goal contract staff expenditure total less in total for CY 2024 compared to CY2023 

Initiatives: 

• Work with the County Commissioners to set the annual budget to achieve the $2,000,000 goal over the three-year 

strategic plan and still allow for adequate funds in the annual budget for routine maintenance 

• Supplement the building fund from monthly, quarterly, or annual contributions from cash flow from operations to 

achieve the total amount of depreciation expense by the end of three-year strategic plan 

• Nursing leadership will work with Human Resources to recruit and retain permanent staff and reduce travel staff by 

30% per year 

 

Accomplishments Issues Impact Action Plan 

Improve days of cash on hand Conversion to Critical 
Access – need new 
Medicare billing # 

Altering the current 
amount of days of cash 
on hand 

Continue to reach out to Noridian 
(MAC) for a charge ratio letter. 

Reduce and maintain Days in A/R Conversion to Critical 
Access – need new 
Medicare billing # 

Altering current number 
of days in AR 

Same as above 

Maintain the level of claims 
denials 

CLA rolling out new 
software to track and 
trend 

December metric met 
goal. 

Waiting to update target and stretch 
goal based on CLA recommendation. 

Reduce and maintain Days Not 
Final Billed:  DNFB split into HIM 
and PFS cases 

Conversion to Critical 
Access – need new 
Medicare billing # 

Altering current number 
of days in AR 

Continue to reach out to Noridian 
(MAC) for a charge ratio letter. 

Build the MHSC County 
Maintenance Fund 

 Pending property tax 
legislation may change 
this initiative 

Request for carryover funds will be 
made in April 2025 

Build and maintain the building 
fund:  receipt of QRA funds 
helped replenish the building 
fund. 

Conversion to Critical 

Access billing held 

since Oct. 1 

  

Decrease the number of Nursing 
and Respiratory Therapy travel 
staff: 
RT travel staff have decreased. RN 
travel staff is decreasing 

 For Med Surg, this will 
have 3 RNs for day/night 
shift and limit bed 
capacity to 15 patients. 

CNO and HR Director are actively 
working on plans. 
A meeting was held with 
interdisciplinary teams discussing the 
relationship between recruitment and 
retention and travel staff. Discussed 
action items. 

Alignment of individual 
departmental performance 
improvement projects (PIPS) has 
identified two additional areas for 
financial stewardship. 

None identified   Surgical Services – working on endo 
room turnover times, nearing goal 
Patient Navigation – working on a self-
pay project, meeting goal 

 

67/136



68/136



69/136



70/136



 

 MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
Finance & Audit Committee Meeting 

March 4, 2025 
 

 

Voting Members Present:  Mr. Marty Kelsey, Trustee – Chairman 

     Ms. Craig Rood, Trustee 

     Ms. Irene Richardson, CEO      

Ms. Tami Love, CFO 

Ms. Jan Layne, Controller 

 

Non-Voting Members Present: Ms. Angel Bennett, Director of Materials 

Mr. Ron Cheese, Director of Patient Financial Services 

Dr. Ann Marie Clevenger, CNO 

Dr. Kari Quickenden, CCO 

 

Non-Voting Member Absent:  Mr. Terry Thompson, Director of IT 

 

Guests:    Ms. Carrie Canestorp, Director of HIM 

     Mr. Gerry Johnston, Director of Facilities    

     Ms. Cindy Nelson, CXO 

     Mr. Taylor Jones, County Commissioner 

     

               

     Call Meeting to Order 
 

Mr. Kelsey called the meeting to order via teleconference at 2:00 PM.  

 

Mission Moment 

 

Ms. Richardson shared a mission moment involving a positive experience shared by a former 

employee who said her family has received great care in OB and they have been hearing great 

things about what is happening at the Hospital.  

 

Approve Meeting Minutes 
 

A motion to approve the meeting minutes from January 29, 2025, was made by Mr. Rood; 

second by Ms. Richardson. Motion carried. 

 

Capital Requests FY25 

 

FY25-37 

 

The motion to approve Capital Request FY25-32 for a camera and badge access system for the 

new Lab building for $98,359.15 as presented and following discussion was made by Mr. Rood; 

second by Ms. Layne. Motion carried.  

 

Capital Budget Amendment 

 

The motion to approve the capital budget amendment as presented and following discussion was 

made by Mr. Rood; second by Ms. Love. Motion carried.  

71/136



 

 

Minutes of the March 4, 2025, Finance & Audit Committee 

Page 2 

Financial Report 

 

Ms. Love reviewed the narrative highlights, critical access update, and financial goals 

information in the meeting packet. There was discussion of exploring incorporating the 3-payroll 

months into the budget next year. Mr. Rood said he would forward an e-mail with contact 

information from a company he learned about at the recent American Hospital Association Rural 

Healthcare Conference relating to AI assisted services. Mr. Cheese reviewed the self-pay report 

information and noted a new section has been added to reflect the implementation of Payzen. Mr. 

Cheese reported the preliminary bad debt amount is $1,870,498.54.  

 

Old Business 

 

CLA Project – Financial goals 

 

Ms. Love said we will follow up and continue with tracking. Mr. Cheese said he is developing 

the reports and plans to have in the next meeting materials. Mr. Kelsey said it will be important 

to monitor and keep track of this work.  

 

     New Business 

 

Request for County Capital Funds 

 

The motion to approve the letter for Dr. Sowada to sign on behalf of the Board as presented 

following discussion was made by Mr. Rood; second by Ms. Richardson. Motion carried.  

 

Financial Forum Discussion 

 

Ms. Love said we were looking at doing an economic study. The University of Wyoming did one 

for the Wyoming Hospital Association a few years ago. They sent us a proposal. Ms. Love said 

we will bring a statement of work to the Board next month.  

 

Ms. Love asked if there are other things the Committee wants to see in the meeting packet. No 

requests were made for additional information or changes. 

 

Next Meeting 

 

The next meeting is scheduled Wednesday, March 26 at 2:00 PM.  

 

Mr. Kelsey thanked everyone for attending. 

 

Meeting adjourned at 3:05 PM. 

 
 

 

 

Submitted by Cindy Nelson 

72/136



73/136



74/136



75/136



76/136



77/136



78/136



79/136



80/136



81/136



82/136



83/136



84/136



85/136



86/136



87/136



88/136



89/136



90/136



91/136



92/136



93/136



94/136



95/136



96/136



97/136



98/136



99/136



100/136



101/136



102/136



103/136



104/136



105/136



106/136



107/136



108/136



109/136



110/136



111/136



112/136



113/136



114/136



115/136



116/136



117/136



118/136



119/136



120/136



121/136



122/136



123/136



124/136



125/136



126/136



127/136



128/136



129/136



130/136



131/136



132/136



133/136



134/136



135/136



136/136


	Agenda - March 5, 2025 Mtg
	Mission and Vision
	February 5, 2025 Regular Meeting
	Approval of Capital Expenditure Requests
	Approval of Bad Debts
	Orientation Memo Template - Access to Personnel File 2025 Amber Fisk Update GP
	EMPLOYEE POLICIES - ACCESS TO PERSONNEL FILE-Draft-Changes GP for March 2025
	Orientation Memo Template - Dress Code Policy 2025 Amber Fisk Second Read
	Employee Policies Dress Code Policy Second Read
	Orientation Memo Template - Revised Agenda Format for Board of Trustees Regular Meetings for approval in consent agenda March 2025
	Agenda Format Discussion 2025 Marty Kelsey
	Professional Practice Review Plan
	Orientation Memo Board Quality Charter - First Read 3.5.2025 Stephanie Mlinar
	Quality Committee Charter-Draft February 2025
	Capital Budget Amendment
	Request for County Capital Funds
	Chief Clinical Officer
	Chief Experience Officer
	Chief Financial Officer
	Chief Nursing Officer
	Building and Grounds Committee
	Governance Committee
	Quality Committee
	Information Services Report
	Finance and Audit Comm Minutes March 4 2025 Draft
	F&A Packet 1 of 2 for March 2025 BOT Mtg
	F&A 2 of 2 for March 2025 BOT Mtg
	Coffey Site Assist Training and Technical Support
	Coffey Site Assist Website Redesign and Development
	Crisis Prevention Institute Training Agreement
	QLER Telepsych Amendment

